I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


A. 	 The Circuit Court erred when it concluded that there were no material facts in 
dispute and that the Petitioners did not satisfy the requisite standards under 
W.Va.R.Civ.P. 56(f) to support a finding that the Respondent's Motion for 
Summary Judgment and Motion to Dismiss should be held in abeyance pending 
further discovery. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court erred by basing its decision, in whole, or in part, upon its 
unpublished August 20,1998 decision in the case styled as West Virginia Automotive 
Dismantlers and Recyclers Association, the West Virginia Insurance Federation, Inc. 
and State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company v. McGraw, et aI., C.A. 97
C-2797. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court erred by construing the West Virginia Automotive Crash Parts 
Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq., without first finding that the same was 
ambiguous. 

D. 	 The Circuit Court erred by modifying and rewriting the West Virginia Automotive 
Crash Parts Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq., which is beyond its jurisdiction. 

E. 	 The Circuit Court erred by failing to consider the Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 
15 U.S.C. § 2301, et. seq., in its construction and interpretation of the West Virginia 
Automotive Crash Parts Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq. 

F. 	 The Circuit Court erred by interpreting the West Virginia Automotive Crash Parts 
Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq., in such a fashion that it is impossible for the 
Petitioners to comply with the same without violating provisions of the West 
Virginia Consumer Credit Protection Act concerning the use of false or misleading 
statements in consumer transactions. 

G. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding that the West Virginia Automotive Crash Parts 
Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq. requires that a new car warranty must be 
maintained for the specific part replaced following a repair, thereby rewriting the 
Act and adding additional criteria that was not contemplated by the West Virginia 
Legislature. 

n. 	 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. 	 Background Of Instant Action 

The Petitioner Liberty Mutuallnsurance Company ("Liberty") is an insurance company licensed 

to do business in the State ofWest Virginia. The issuance of automobile insurance, and the handling of 

claims which arise thereunder, are two aspects of the business conducted by Liberty in West Virginia. 

See Joint Appendix ("App."), pp. 0211-0212, ~~ 7 and 8. As part of its services to automobile insurance 

policyholders, Liberty maintains a list ofpreferred body shops that may be selected by their insureds to 

repair vehicles that are involved in accidents or are otherwise damaged. These preferred body shops are 

referred to by Liberty as Total Liberty Care ("TLC") Shops. See App., pp. 0040, " 16, 17; and 212, ~ 
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16, 17. The Petitioner, Greg Chandler's Frame & Body, LLC ("Chandler") operates a body shop in West 

Virginia and is one ofLiberty's TLC Shops. See App., pp. 0040, " 16, 17; and 250, "16, 17. 

In the automobile repair industry there are three basic classifications of parts that are typically 

available for the repair ofvehicles, namely genuine Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM") parts, 

aftermarket parts, and reconditioned or recycled OEM parts. These three classifications can generally be 

defined as follows: 

Genuine OEM parts are parts that have been manufactured by the original manufacturer 
of the vehicle and are authorized to carry the name or trademark of the original 
manufacturer. See W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-2(d). 

An aftermarket part is a part made by a company other than the vehicle manufacturer or 
the original equipment manufacturer. See W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-2(a); App., pp. 0137, 
0455, or 1173; 0211; and 0268-0269. 

A recycled OEM part is a part that was made for and installed in a new vehicle by the 
manufacturer or the original equipment manufacturer, and later removed from the vehicle 
and made available for resale or reuse. See App., pp. 0137, 0455 or 1173; 0211; and 
0268-0269. 

With respect to aftermarket crash parts, the West Virginia Legislature ("W.Va. Legislature") 

passed the West Virginia Automotive Crash Parts Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq. ("Crash Parts 

Act") to address the use of aftermarket crash parts in the repair of motor vehicles involved in accidents.} 

Specifically, the W.va. Legislature enacted the following declaration as part of the Crash Parts Act: 

The Legislature hereby finds and declares as a matter of public policy that the purposes 
of this article are to require disclosure to motor vehicle owners of information on certain 
replacement crash parts for repairs to their motor vehicles and to prevent both motor 
vehicle body shops and insurance companies from requiring the use of aftermarket 
crash parts for repair unless the motor vehicle owner consents in writing at the time of 
the repair. 

W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-1. (Emphasis added.) Notably, the W.Va. Legislature did not mention recycled 

OEM crash parts in its declaration, and specifically stated that its purpose for the enactment of the Crash 

Parts Act was to address the use ofaftermarket crash parts. This is substantiated by the fact that the 

1 Crash parts as defined in West Virginia are exterior or interior sheet metal or fiberglass panels and parts which 
form the superstructure or body of a motor vehicle, including, but not limited to, fenders, bumpers, quarter panels, 
door panels, hoods, grills, fire walls, permanent roofs, wheel wells and front and rear lamp display panels. W.Va. 
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phrase "recycled OEM crash parts" is not only undefined under the Crash Parts Act, but also such parts 

are not referenced whatsoever. W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-l, et seq. 

In an effort to further reduce the cost of premiums for its insureds, Liberty instituted a nationwide 

policy for its TLC Shops concerning the use ofrecycled OEM crash parts. Liberty directed its TLC 

Shops to repair vehicles utilizing recycled OEM crash parts where available and appropriate, which 

satisfied the following criteria: (a) manufactured by the original manufacturer; (b) from a vehicle of the 

same model year or newer; and (c) with the same number of miles or fewer than the vehicle to be 

repaired. However, Liberty's policy that aftermarket crash parts should not be utilized did not change. 

See App., p. 0213, ~ 18. 

With respect to the implementation of this policy in West Virginia, Liberty's decision was based 

upon its understanding that the use of recycled OEM crash parts was sufficient to maintain the 

manufacturers' warranties for fit, fmish, structural integrity, corrosion resistance, dent resistance and 

crash performance ofthe motor vehicle, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the Crash Parts Act, the 

Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2301, et seq. (''MMWA''), and factory warranties issued by 

new car manufacturers. See App., pp. 0212-0213, ~~ 18-19; 0238, ~ 47; and 0137,0455 or 1173. As a 

further service, Liberty provided a lifetime warranty to the owner of the motor vehicle for all repairs 

performed by its TLC Shops. See App. pp. 0107; 0208; and 0460. In addition, Chandler issued its own 

lifetime warranty for vehicles repaired by it. See App., pp. 0209 and 0459. 

Following the implementation of this policy, one ofLiberty's West Virginia TLC Shops, Joe 

Holland Chevrolet, a body shop and authorized seller ofnew OEM parts, voiced an objection concerning 

the use of recycled OEM crash parts. Unable to resolve their respective differences over this issue, Joe 

Holland Chevrolet was removed from Liberty's TLC program. See App., pp. 0172-0174; 0735-0737; 

0169-0171; 0738-0740; and 1117. Following its removal from the TLC program, Joe Holland Chevrolet 

Code § 46A-6B-2(c). In that regard, the Crash Parts Act does not pertain to all parts on a vehicle that may need to 
be repaired, only those that would be classified as crash parts. 
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authorized its counsel, Frank A. Baer, ill, to contact the WV AG and request that the matter be 

investigated, despite the fact that no customer complaints had been received. See App., p. 1II7? 

Following the implementation ofLiberty's policy concerning recycled OEM crash parts, and 

during the same month that Mr. Baer, ill submitted his letter to the WV AG, the Federal Trade 

Commission ("FTC") issued a consumer alert clarifying the application of the MMWA to new car 

warranties. In its July 2011 Consumer Alert the FTC unequivocally stated the following with respect to 

recycled parts: 

An 'aftermarket' part is a part made by a company other than the vehicle manufacturer or 
the original equipment manufacturer. A 'recycled' part is a part that was made for and 
installed in a new vehicle by the manufacturer or the original equipment manufacturer, 
and later removed from the vehicle and made available for resale or reuse. Simply using 
an aftermarket or recycled part does not void your warranty. The Magnuson-Moss 
Warranty Act makes it illegal for companies to void your warranty or deny 
coverage under the warranty simply because you used an aftermarket or recycled 
part. Still, if it turns out that the aftermarket or recycled part was itself defective or 
wasn't installed correctly, and it causes damage to another part that is covered under the 
warranty, the manufacturer or dealer has the right to deny coverage for that part and 
charge you for any repairs. The FTC says the manufacturer or dealer must show that 
the aftermarket or recycled part caused the need for repairs before denying 
warranty coverage. 

See App., pp. 0137; 0455; or 1173. (Emphasis added). 

However, the WVAG in July 2011, and at all times pertinent to its investigation of the 

Petitioners, has taken a position that is completely opposite to that ofthe FTC. During its investigation of 

the Petitioners, the WVAG's website, in the section entitled "Frequently Asked Questions - Crash Parts / 

Used Sold as New", strongly cautioned the public that "ifaftermarket crash parts or salvage crash parts3 

are used on a consumer's vehicle, as opposed to genuine crash parts, the factory warranty ~ 

2 The Petitioners were not aware that the investigation was initiated upon the request of Joe Holland Chevrolet until 
the WVAG filed its supplemental discovery responses on August 3, 2012. See App., p. 1117. 
3 Rather than use the term recycled OEM crash parts, the WVAG, in these proceedings and dwing interviews with 
the Charleston, West Virginia media, has instead utilized the terms "salvage parts", ''junk parts" or "junk yard 
parts" which have negative connotations to the uninformed consumer. Although the Petitioners were denied the 
opportunity to present evidence concerning this issue, the recycled OEM crash parts utilized by the industry in 
general, and by the Petitioners, must satisfy certain criteria and testing before they are acceptable for use. 
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declared totally void on that crash part and any part it touches" for vehicles in the year of their 

manufacture or in the two succeeding years thereafter. (Emphasis added.) See App., p. 453. 4 

Upon receipt of the letter from counsel for Joe Holland Chevrolet, the WVAG initiated an 

investigation ofLiberty's practices without having received one consumer complaint concerning the 

issue. See App., pp. 56-57. As part of its investigation, a former deputy attorney general for the WV AG 

contacted general counsel for Liberty and inquired whether Liberty used "aftermarket parts". In response, 

Liberty's general counsel stated that Liberty did not utilize aftermarket parts in the repair ofvehicles that 

are three years old or newer. Unbeknownst to Liberty at that time, the WVAG's use of the phrase 

"aftermarket parts" encompassed all parts that are not brand new OEM parts. Nonetheless, the WV AG 

erroneously assumed that Liberty was being less than forthright and decided to proceed forward with a 

full investigation. See App., pp. 0060 and 0188-189. 

In September of2011, the WVAG issued fourteen (14) investigative subpoenas to select motor 

vehicle body shops in West Virginia, including but not limited to Chandler, seeking information with 

respect to Liberty's negotiation ofrepairs for motor vehicles in the year of their manufacture or in the two 

succeeding years thereafter with motor vehicle body shops' in West Virginia, for the past three years. 

From October 2011 to December 13,2011, the Petitioners attempted to amicably discuss with the 

WVAG their respective differences of interpretation with respect to the requirements associated with 

repairs of motor vehh::les under the Crash Parts Act. Specifically, the Petitioners, by and through their 

counsel, sent an email to the Deputy Attorney General, stating that the Petitioners strongly believed that 

the MMWA, 15 U.S.C. § 2301, et seq., governed the disposition and resolution ofthis dispute. 

Nonetheless, counsel for Petitioners indicated that Liberty was willing to suspend its policy and that its 

lLC Shops, including Chandler, would repair vehicles using only new genuine OEM parts, pending the 

4 During the pendency ofthis matter, the WV AG modified its website to reflect that the use of recycled OEM crash 
parts would .no1J;erve to "totally void" the warranty. The WV A G amended its website to reflect that "if aftermarket 
crash parts or salvage crash parts are used on a consumer's vehicle, as opposed to genuine crash parts, the car 
manufacturer is not required to warrant those parts. In the event the aftermarket crash parts or salvage crash parts are 
determined to be the cause of any malfunction, the manufacturer may refuse to honor the warranty on any part the 
aftermarket crash part or salvage crash part touches." See App. p. 1309, lines 21-24, p. 1310, lines 1-4. 
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parties requesting, and obtaining, an informational opinion from the FTC concerning the effect that the 

MMWA has on the Crash Parts Act and the warranties on the parts set forth therein. See App., pp. 135

36. The WVAG did not respond to this email. 

On December 15, 2011, the WVAG filed its Complaint against the Petitioners. Despite its 

admissions that the majority ofthe body shops investigated had implemented Liberty's policy with 

respect to the use of recycled crash parts, the WVAG only filed suit against Chandler. Coincidently, 

Chandler was the only body shop which decided to retain counsel in response to the investigative 

subpoena that it received. See App., p. 0060. 

B. Summary of Claims 

The WVAG's Complaint consists of three counts. Count I alleges that Liberty required the use of 

recycled OEM crash parts when negotiating repairs without obtaining the consent ofthe consumer, which 

constitutes violations ofW.Va. Code §§ 46A-6B-3 and 46A-6-104. Count IT alleges that Chandler failed 

to obtain the written consent ofthe consumer when negotiating repairs using recycled OEM crash parts, 

which constitutes violations ofW.Va. Code §§ 46A-6B-4 and 46A-6-104. Count ill alleges that the 

actions of the Petitioners with respect to the use of recycled OEM crash parts when negotiating repairs 

constitutes the concealment, suppression, or omission of a material fact, and is an unfair or deceptive act 

or practice in violation of the West Virginia Consumer Credit Protection Act, W.Va. Code § 46A-l-10l, 

et seq. ("WVCCPA"), specifically, W.Va. Code § 46A-6-1 04. By way of relief, the WVAG is seeking 

(1) a permanent injunction with respect to the Petitioners use ofrecycled OEM crash parts; (2) 'restitution 

for all affected consumers, (3) reimbursement ofinvestigative costs, court costs and attorney fees; and (4) 

civil penalties, as proscribed at W.Va. Code § 46A-7-111 (2). See App., pp. 0037-0054. Interestingly, the 

five (5) consumer complaints subsequently identified by the WVAG in discovery concerning this matter 

were all received after the Complaint was filed and the WVAG engaged in a series of media interviews 

and press releases decrying the actions of the Petitioners. See App., pp. 0667-0717. 

As reflected by their respective Answers to the WV AG's Complaint, the Petitioners maintain that 

the use of recycled OEM crash parts is not a violation of the Crash Parts Act or the WVCCPA. The 
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Petitioners maintain that the Crash Parts Act is completely silent with respect to the use of recycled OEM 

crash parts and is not applicable. Further, the Petitioners aver that compliance with the WVAG's 

interpretation ofthe Crash Parts Act is impossible because the statutory mandated language in the notice 

provision ofthe Act pnly addresses aftermarket crash parts. W.Va. Code § 46A-6B-4. In addition, the 

Petitioners maintain that the WVAG's unsubstantiated opinion that the use of recycled OEM crash parts 

totally voids new car warranties under the Crash Parts Act, as originally declared on its website, and its 

enforcement ofthe Act on this premise, is in direct contradiction with long-standing federal law, namely 

the MMWA. Not only does the WVAG's enforcement of the Crash Parts Act serve to facilitate a tying 

arrangement, the WVAG has actually created a tying arrangement for the exclusive use of genuine OEM 

crash parts in West Virginia or vehicles that are three years old or newer, which is in direct contravention 

ofthe MMWA. In that regard, the Petitioners have each asserted a counterclaim for declaratory judgment 

seeking a series of declarations concerning the Crash Parts Act, the MMW A and the effect that use of 

recycled OEM crash parts has on anew car warranties. See, App., pp. 0210-0246; and 0247-0283. 

C. Proceedings and Rulings Below 

After service ofthe Complaint, the Petitioners immediately sought to remove the matter to the 

United States District Court for the Southern District ofWest Virginia ("WV Southern District Court") on 

the basis that there was a question of federal law at issue, specifically the interplay between the MMW A 

and the Crash Parts Act. In that regard, the Petitioners removed the instant matter on January 10,2012, to 

the WV Southern District Court. 

Following removal, the Petitioners filed a Motion to Dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) for Failure to 

State a Claim on January 17,2012. App., pp. 0108-0138. Subsequently, the WVAG filed a Motion to 

Remand and its Memorandum of Law in Opposition to Petitioners' Motion to Dismiss. See App., pp. 

0139-0186. In response, the Petitioners filed a Reply to the WVAG's Memorandum ofLaw in 

Opposition to Petitioners' Motion to Dismiss. See App., pp. 0187-0209. Upon consideration of the 

WVAG's Motion to Remand, the WV Southern District Court entered a Memorandum Opinion and Order 

on March 27, 2012. Finding that the Crash Parts Act did not raise a federal issue and that the matter as 
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filed could not have been brought in Federal Court, the WV Southern District Court remanded the matter 

back to the Circuit Court, leaving the substantive issues, including the Petitioners' Motion to Dismiss, for 

its determination. See App., pp. 0029-0036. 

Following remand, the Circuit Court scheduled a hearing on April 9, 2012, concerning the 

WVAG's request for a preliminary injunction. On Apri19, 2012, the parties appeared before the Circuit 

Court and reported that they had reached an agreement with respect to a preliminary injunction and the 

WVAG's request for information concerning the parts utilized by Liberty's TLC body shops in West 

Virginia for the past three (3) years. See App., pp. 1269-1271 and 0023. 

The Petitioners also agreed during the April 9, 2012, hearing that their previously filed Motion to 

Dismiss the WVAG' s Complaint should be converted to a Motion for Summary Judgment pursuant to 

Rule S6 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure ("W.Va.R.Civ.P."), and that they would have the 

right to supplement the same following additional discovery. In that regard, the Petitioners further agreed 

to file answers to the WVAG's Complaint on or before April 24, 2012. See App., pp. 1279-1281. The 

Circuit Court further inquired as to the intent ofthe parties to take any discovery. Counsel for the 

Petitioners indicated that they intended to engage in discovery and the WVAG objected, stating that such 

was not necessary. After consideration, the Circuit Court refused to prohibit the Petitioners from 

conducting discovery and simply decided to turn the parties "loose" See App., pp. 1281-1283. However, 

the Circuit Court did not enter a scheduling order pursuant to W .Va.R.Civ.P. 16(b). 

On April2S, 2012, the Petitioners each filed an answer to the WVAG's Complaint, including a 

counterclaim seeking a declaratory judgment concerning the issues at hand. See, App., pp. 0210-0246; 

and 0247-0283. In addition, Liberty submitted its Response to the WVAG's Request for Information on 

June 8,2012. This response provided documentation concemingthe type of crash parts and non-crash 

parts utili~d by Liberty's TLC body shops in West Virginia for the past three (3) years. See App., pp. 

0767-0777. Upon receipt of the Answers and Counterclaims ofthe Petitioners, the WVAG filed a Motion 

to Dismiss the Counterclaims on May 10, 2012. See App., pp. 0284-0294. 
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Consistent with the representations ofits counsel at the hearing on April 9, 2012, concerning the

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