I.

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

ARGUMENT 

A. 	 The Circuit Court correctly concluded there were no material facts in dispute and that 
the Petitioners did not satisfy the requisite standards under W. Va. R. Civ. P. 56(f) to 
delay entry of Summary Judgment in favor of the State. 

When reviewing a circuit court's grant of summary judgment, the judgment is reviewed 

de novo by the Supreme Court of Appeals. Painter v Peavey, 192 W. Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755, 

Syl. pt. 1 (1994). When considering the propriety ofsummary judgment, the Court applies the same 

standard that is applied at the circuit court level. '''[AJ motion for summary judgment should be 

granted only when it is clear that there is no genuine issue of fact to be tried and inquiry concerning 

the facts is not desirable to clarify the application of the law.'Syl. pt. 3, Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. v. 

Federallns. Co. ofNew York, 148 W. Va. 160, 133 S.E.2d 770 (1963)." Watson v. IncoAlloys Int'!, 

Inc., 209 W. Va. 234, 238, 545 S.E.2d 294, 298 (2001). Ifthe record taken as a whole cannot lead 

a rational trier offact to find for the nonmoving party, summary judgment must be granted. Parker 

v. Estate ofBealer, 221 W. Va. 684, 687, 656 S.E.2d 129,132 (W. Va. 2007) (quoting Williams v. 

Precision Coil, Inc., 459 S.E.2d 329,338 (W. Va. 1995)(quoting Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 

477 U.S. 242, 247-8 (1986»). 

Although the Court must view the facts and all permissible inferences from them in the light 

most favorable to the nonmoving party, that party "must nonetheless offer some concrete evidence 

from which a reasonable ... [finder offactJ could return a verdict in ...[its] favor." Painter v. Peavy, 

192 W. Va. at 193,451 S.E.2d at 759 CW. Va. 1994), (quoting Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 

supra). If it does not, the court should grant the motion for summary judgment. 
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The State submitted a properly supported motion for summary judgment pursuant to 

W. Va. R. Civ. P. 56(c). The burden of proof shifts to the Petitioners to rehabilitate evidence, 

produce additional evidence showing a genuine issue for trial, or explain why further discovery is 

necessary pursuant to Rule 56(f). W. Va. R. Civ. P. 56(f). Petitioners could not rehabilitate evidence 

(essential facts were admitted), did not produce additional evidence to support their position (though 

they had opportunity), and thus relied on a Rule 56(f) affidavit to defeat the State's motion for 

summary judgment. 

The Petitioners' submitted an affidavit by their counsel pursuant to Rule 56(f) that was 

deficient in all respects. Rule 56(f) provides: 

Should it appear from the affidavits of a party opposing the motion 
that the party cannot for reasons stated present by affidavit facts 
essential to justifY the party's opposition, the court may refuse the 
application for judgment or may order a continuance to permit 
affidavits to be obtained or depositions to be taken or discovery to be 
had or may make such other order as is just. 

W. Va. R. Civ. P. 56(f). This Court has set forth criteria a party must meet in a Rule 56(f) affidavit 

to defeat a motion for summary judgment. Powderidge Unit Owner Assoc. v. Highland Properties, 

Ltd., 196 W. Va. 692,474 S.E.2d 872, Syl. pt.1 (1996). The Rule 56(f) affidavit must: 

(1) articulate some plausible basis for the party's belief that specified 
"discoverable" material facts likely exist which have not yet become 
accessible to the party; (2) demonstrate some realistic prospect that 
the material facts can be obtained within a reasonable additional time 
period; (3) demonstrate that the material facts will, if obtained, 
suffice to engender an issue both genuine and material; and (4) 
demonstrate good cause for failure to have conducted the discovery 
earlier. 
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ld. Petitioners failed on all four points as noted by the trial court in its order. App., pp. 0011-0012, 

0014-0015. 

Petitioners have no plausible basis to believe there are discoverable facts that are material. 

Petitioners admit no written consent is obtained from consumers for the use of salvage crash parts 

prior to the repairs of their vehicles. App., pp. 0213-0214, 0767-0768, 0324-0325, 0335-0338, 

0360-0369,0386-0395. Petitioners admit Liberty negotiates for the use ofsalvage crash parts in the 

repairs of vehicles without obtaining written consent from the owners of the vehicles. App., pp. 

0213-0214, 0250-0251. Admitting these facts is fatal to the Petitioners' Rule 56(f) affidavit. No 

further discovery is necessary on these admitted facts. 

Petitioners claim they were not timely given documents obtained by the State during its 

investigation. The State obtairied records from Liberty TLC Shops. The State eventually produced 

these records to Petitioners. However, Petitioners had better and easier access to any documents from 

their own TLC Shops and could have obtained the information from them at any time - even prior 

to the commencement of the action since Petitioners were well aware of the investigation. See 

generally, App., p. 0236, ~ ~ 40 and 41. Petitioners, even now, fail to point to any documents 

produced by the State from TLC Shops that were material to their defenses. 

Petitioners also produced records to the State showing 192 customers had salvage parts 

placed on their late model vehicles without Petitioners obtaining written consent from the vehicle 

owners. App., pp. 0415-0416. Petitioners could have questioned or deposed anyofthese 192 vehicle 

owners to determine if they had received written consent for the use of sal vage crash parts on their 

vehicles, and whether they would have consented if they had known before repairs were made. 
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Petitioners also admitted in the Rule 56(f) affidavit that they had not even attempted to schedule 

depositions of three witnesses identified by the State in January 2012. App., p. 0473.8 Petitioners 

failed to help themselves. Thus the Rule 56(f) affidavit fails under Powderidge, 196 W. Va. 692, 

474 S.E.2d 872, Syl. pt. 1. 

Petitioners also belatedly realized they could issue Rule 45 subpoenas to third-party vehicle 

manufacturers. W. Va. R. Civ. P. 45. They didn't issue the Rule 45 subpoenas until eight months 

after the action was filed, but still two months before the hearing on suri1mary judgment motions that 

had been continued to September 24,2012, at Petitioners' request. App., p. 0009. Petitioners still 

have not found one manufacturer willing to agree it would continue its original manufacturer's 

warranty on salvage crash parts. It is unlikely that additional discovery time would produce 

Petitioners' desired facts.9 Thus, Petitioners' efforts again fail under Powderidge. 196 W. Va. 692, 

474 S.E.2d 872, Syl. pt. 1. 

Nothing precluded Petitioners from hiring an expert. App., p. 0473. They sat on their 

discovery rights. Why they continue to think one is necessary is unknown. 

Petitioners' Rule 56(f) affidavit was nothing more than a feeble, if voluminous, attempt to 

delay the inevitable: compensating vehicle owners whose vehicles were repaired with salvage crash 

parts without notice to, or written consent from the owners. 

8Compare this with Petitioners' statement that the State prevented Petitioners from deposing the 
State's affiants. Petitioners' Brief at p. 16. The State never prevented the Petitioners from issuing notices of 
deposition for anyone. The assertion is ridiculous. 

9Petitioners rely on a Federal Trade Commission circular to create an "issue of fact." However, at 
best, the FTC's position is a legal position on how it interprets the Magnuson Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. 
§ 2301 et seq. The FTC's position is not even contrary. The FTC recognizes that "the manufacturer or dealer 
has the right to deny coverage for that part and charge you for repairs ..." if the salvage part was defective, 
causes damage to another part or was not installed correctly. App., pp. 0455-0456. 
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B. 	 The Circuit Court correctly construed the West Virginia Automotive Crash Parts Act, 
W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-1, et seq. and Petitioners appear to have complied with the 1998 
Order in the past. 

a. 	 Failure to notify consumers of the use of salvage crash parts is an unfair or 
deceptive act or practice under the Consumer Credit and Protection Act 

The purpose ofthe CCP A is to protect consumers from unfair, illegal, 
and deceptive acts or practices by providing an avenue of relief for 
consumers who would otherwise have difficulty proving their case 
under a more traditional cause of action. 

State ex rei. McGraw v. Scott Runyan Pontiac-Buick, Inc., 194 W. Va. 770, 777,461 S.E.2d 516, 

523 (1995). "Where an act is clearly remedial in nature, we must construe the statute liberally so as 

to furnish and accomplish all the purposes intended." Id. (citations omitted) The WVCCP A is to be 

construed liberally so that its "beneficial purposes maybe served." W. Va. Code § 46A-6-101(1). 

Petitioners consistently fail to recognize the beneficial purposes ofthe WVCCP A, generally, 

and the Crash Parts Law, specifically. The Crash Part Law was enacted to both give notice to 

consumers of the type of crash parts being used to repair their vehicles and to prevent the use of 

aftern1arket crash parts without the consent of the vehicle owner. W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-1.10 At a 

minimum, Petitioners could have given the required notices under the Crash Parts Law, but they 

failed to do so. The record is devoid of any notice to any consumer that is in compliance with the 

law. The Petitioners' position has been quite clear - they claim they are not required to give notice 

10 	 The Legislature hereby finds and declares as a matter of public policy that 
the purposes ofthis article are to require disclosure to motor vehicle owners 
of information on certain replacement crash parts for repairs to their motor 
vehicles and to prevent both motor vehicle body shops and insurance 
companies from requiring the use of aftermarket crash parts for repair 
unless the motor vehicle owner consents in writing at the time ofthe repair. 

W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-1. 
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to, or get written consent from consumers when salvage crash parts are to be used to repair their 

vehicles. See generally, Petitioners' Brief; App., p. 0122. 

Failing to give notice to consumers about the salvage crash parts under the WVCCPA as 

required, is unfair or deceptive and such failure and omission is a violation ofthe WVCCP A as well 

as the Crash Parts Law. ll West Virginia Code provides that "unfair methods of competition and 

unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce are ... unlawful." 

W. Va. Code § 46A-6-104. "Unfair or deceptive acts or practices" is defined, in part, to include: 

The act, use or employment by any person of any deception, fraud, 
false pretense, false promise or misrepresentation, or the 
concealment, suppression or omission of any material fact with the 
intent that others rely upon such concealment, suppression or 
omission, in connection with the sale or advertisement of any goods 
or services, whether or not any person has in fact been misled, 
deceived or damaged thereby. 

W. Va. Code § 46A-6-102(7)(M). Petitioners cannot credibly dispute that the type of crash part 

being used to repair a consumer's vehicle is a material fact. "A material fact exists where a buyer 

would have acted differently knowing the information, or if it concerned the type of information 

upon which a buyer would be expected to rely in making a decision whether to purchase." 

Connick v. Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd., 174 Ill. 2d 482, 505, 675 N.E.2d 584, 595 (1996); F. T C. 

v. Cyberspace. Com LLC, 453 F.3d 1196, 1201 (9th Cir. 2006). The types of crash parts to be used 

are so material, the Legislature enacted the Crash Parts Law to specifically require body shops to 

give a consumer, before repairs commence, "a list to the vehicle owner of the replacement crash 

parts that the body shop intends to use in making repairs." W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-4(a)(1). 

II"A violation of any provision of this article [Crash Parts Law] is an unfair or deceptive act or 
practice within the meaning of section one hundred two, article six of this chapter and is subject to the 
enforcement and penalty provisions contained in this chapter." W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-6. 
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Petitioners failed to produce any such crash parts list given to any consumer before repairs were 

made. This failure is supported by the complaints and affidavits of consumers as well as their 

displeasure with the deception once they learned ofthe Petitioners' omissions. App., pp. 0087-0091, 

0680-0717. 

The circuit court found that the type ofcrash parts being used to repair consumers' vehicles 

was material. "The type and quality ofparts being used to repair a consumer's motor vehicle, i.e. 

salvaged crash parts, are material facts." App., p. 0017, ~ 23. Petitioners do not challenge this 

finding, nor can they. Petitioners also cannot dispute the fact that they failed to give notice to 

consumers that salvaged crash parts were being used on their vehicles and failed to get written 

consent from the consumers for the use ofthose parts. Thus, Petitioners, at a minimum, failed to give 

consumers material information about the repairs performed on their vehicles in violation of the 

WVCCPA. W. Va. Code § § 46A-6-104, 46A-6-102(7)(M). 

Both Liberty and Chandler could comply with the WVCCPA if they choose to. Petitioners 

have drafted notices to consumers ofthe types ofcrash parts to be used to repair their vehicles. App., 

pp. 0457-0458. Although the notices may not be perfect, they do convey the basic information ofthe 

types of crash parts to be used, and more importantly, they would get written consent from the 

consumers, ifthey agreed to the use ofthe parts. Petitioners' refusal to provide meaningful disclosure 

about the type of crash parts to be used to repair a consumer's vehicle has not been explained. The 

answer is obvious, Petitioners do not want consumers to know. Petitioners' current violation of the 

WVCCPA, W. Va. Code § 46A-6-104, failing to disclose material facts, must be confirmed. 
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Petitioners can comply with both the WVCCPA and the Crash Parts Law. Prior to June 201 0, 

it appears that they did. App., p. 0334. They simply chose not to comply after June 2010. The Crash 

Parts Law requires body shops such as Chandler's to comply with the following: 

(a) Effective the first day of July, one thousand nine hundred 
ninety-five, before beginning repair work on crash parts, a motor 
vehicle body shop shall: 
(1) Provide a list to the vehicle owner of the replacement crash parts 
that the body shop intends to use in making repairs; 
(2) Specify whether the replacement parts are genuine crash parts; and 
(3) Identify the manufacturer ofthe parts ifthe replacements parts are 
aftennarket crash parts. 
(b) If the replacement crash parts to be used by the body shop in the 
repair work are aftermarket crash parts, the body shop shall include 
with its estimate the following written statement: "THIS ESTIMATE 
HAS BEEN PREPARED BASED ON THE USE OF 
AFTERMARKET CRASH PARTS THAT ARE NOT 
MANUFACTURED BY THE ORIGINAL MANUFACTURER OF 
THE VEHICLE OR BY A MANUFACTURER AUTHORIZED BY 
THE ORIGINAL MANUFACTURER TO USE ITS NAME OR 
TRADEMARK. THE USE OF AN AFTERMARKET CRASH 
PART MAY INVALIDATE ANY REMAINING WARRANTIES 
OF THE ORIGINAL MANUFACTURER ON THAT CRASH 
PART." 
(c) The notices and statements required under this section shall be 
made in writing in a clear and conspicuous manner on a separate 
piece of paper in ten-point capital type. 

W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-4.· The Crash Parts Law requires Chandler to provide a list ofthe crash parts 

to be used for repairs, before beginning the work. W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-4(a)(1). Chandler failed 

to do this. Chandler also must specify whether the crash parts to be used are genuine. W. Va. Code 

§ 46A-6B-4(a)(2).'2 Chandler failed to do this. Chandler also was required to identify the 

'2(d) "'Genuine crash parts' means crash parts:(l) Manufactured by or for the original manufacturer 
of the motor vehicle to be repaired; and (2) That are authorized to carry the name or trademark ofthe original 
manufacturer of the motor vehicle." W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-2(d). 
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manufacturer if the crash part was an "aftermarket crash part.,,]3 If an aftennarket crash part was 

used, Chandler was required to give the notice provided in the statute. All of the notices and 

statements are required to be on a separate piece of paper in at least 10 point capital type. None of 

this was done. All of this could have been done regardless of the circuit court's 1998 Order. 

Chandler can't change these facts, even ifhe is given another 14 years to do discovery. 

Chandler's failure to comply with this part of the Crash Parts Law is an unfair or deceptive 

act in violation of the Crash Parts Law, W. Va. Code § 46A-6B-6 and the WVCCPA, W. Va. Code 

§ 46A-6-104. No amount of further discovery will cure Chandler's failure to comply with this part 

of the Crash Parts Law, a statute simply requiring disclosure of the type of crash parts to be used to 

repair vehicles. Petitioners concede this. They failed to address it at all in their brief. 

The Petitioners complain about the circuit court's 2012 Order which requires them to notify 

and get consent from consumers before repairing vehicles with salvage crash parts. The statute

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